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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Ambrose Hall, built in 5 phases from 1885 to 191§, is about 300 feet long and 75-100
feet deep. It is a '""pragmatic adaptation' of the Second Empire style, each 3-story
section conforming to the others in design and essential decorative features. The
front facade consists of irregularly projecting pavilions which relieve the immense
length of the building and contribute to its Picturesque appearance.

Several features are common to all sections of Ambrose Hall. Windows and doorways
have: rounded arches, with stone hoodmolds and keystones, and 1/1 or 2/2 lights in
varying sizes. A stone stringcourse runs between the first and second stories of
all but the earliest, '"Tower' section. Decorative brick corbelling runs the length
of the structure below the cornice. T

Although at first glance, the sections of the building seem quite similar, a certain
variety of detail and some unfortunate modern changes identify each building phase
quite explicitly. The oldest section (1885-7) is a symmetrical structure, 7 bays
wide with a central pavilion capped by a mansard tower. It is constructed of smooth
rusticated ashlar on the ground floor level and brick above, with quoining. The
original diamond shingles, gabled dormers and decorative cornlce were replaced in
the early 1960's with modern windows, asphalt shingles and severely plain cornice.

The second phase (1893) was added to the east. It is five bays wide with a projecting
central pavilion, and is connected to the 1885 portion by a 3-bay, recessed section.
Its windows, doors and brickwork are identical to that of the Tower section, but it
is brick from the ground up. Alteratlons to the mansard roof are also 11ke those

of the Tower section. Lo E : O ; ,

The third phase (1901) was added to the west end of the building. Its design and
decoration are original. It is asymmetrical, consisting of two symmetrical sections
joined together, 3 and. 5% bays wide, respectively, with a central pavilion. The man-
sard roof is covered in diamond-shaped shingles of slate, and has simply-curved
bargeboarding .on the gabled dormers. The roof of the pavilion is raised slightly,
and has a decorative cornice beneath an iron balustride. Cornicework on this

section is elaborate, with a Victorian varietion of the dentil.... Of particular intere:
are the tracery windows in the third story, which mark the chapel. The two smaller,
hexafoil windows are set into the brick gelow segmental dormers. The central paviliol
has a chapel window, consisting of a dyptich of trefoil windows surmounted by an
octafoil window and enclosed in a segmental dormer. . The west side of this section
has a three-level, flatroofed brick porch which extends to about the middle of the
third story. The ground and first floor levels are contained in elliptical arched
openings with a wood spindle balustrade. The roof is edged with elaborate wrought-
ironwork. The mansard roof on this facade features a tryptich of semicircular arched
windows beneath a gambrel-roofed dormer. It is set between two smaller gabled dormer
and there is a corbelled chimney to the left rear.

The fourth addition (1908) did not conform in design to the rest of the structure,
having some simplified Colonial Revival suggestions in its design. To remedy this,
a fifth addition was made in 1912 to the front facade of the fourth addition, solely
for the purpose of bringing this section into conformity. It retains the original
cornice, diamond shingles and dormers, as well as the window shapes, pavilion and
stringcource typical of the other sections.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Ambrose Hall is a singularly impressive example of the application of the Second
Empire style to the practicality of an academic building. The alterations are

- generally unobtrusive, and do not violate the pragmatic approach and character of
the structure.™® =

The continuity exhibited in the various additions to the first simple building

which was Ambrose Hall is a physical reflection of the continuity in quality and
purpose of the College itself. St. Ambrose College was founded in 1882 by the

Rt. Rev. John McMullen, first bishop of Davenport. Although formally incorporated

as a '"seminary'' in 1885, the school never was considered a training ground exclusively
for future priests. From the beginning, St. Ambrose was a ''Catholic school for
advanced studies", which included courses in the humanities, sciences and in business
as well as theological studies. In a sense, this liberal arts curriculum was a pionee:
in its day, 'allowing future priests to live and work with young men who might one

day be their parishioners, rather than cloistering them at an early age away from

the people and ideas with which they would have to deal as priests. .- =

This philosophy holds today as well. The name was changed. in:1908 tc St. Ambrose
College, to emphasize the broad nature of the institution's offerings. A high school,
which had been formed as. part of the original college, ‘functioned until 1958. The
steady growth of St. Ambrose, so well reflected in the massive wings of Ambrose Hall,
has since overwhelmed: this main building, and the college today boasts a number of
other, newer buildings, including a women's residence hall, astronomical observatory,
and classroom and laboratory buildings. S

Ambrose Hall itself has seen a variety of activities within its walls over the years
since 1885, One or another part of it has been used as classrooms, dormitory, chapel,
faculty residence, offices, student umion, and even for laundry and dining facilities.

Ambrose Hall has particular significance for the priests and people of the Diocese of
Davenport, which includes 22 counties in southeast Iowa, since it was financed by
them and has served their educational needs over the years. - Nearly every priest

of the diocese is a graduate of St. Ambrose College and most of them return to the
College several times each year for workshops and retreats. Ambrose Hall remains

the heart of the college for them.

*A noteworthy design feature of the building is that the first 3 sections were designe
at the same time by architect Victor Huot. The College clearly expected to expand its
facilities in future years, and thus arranged to have designs for two additional
sections (besides the original Tower portion) on hand when the occasion for expansion

eventually arose.
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